
MINUTES OF MEETING 
JULINGTON CREEK PLANTATION 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Julington Creek Plantation 

Community Development District was held Tuesday, April 10, 2007 at 6:00 p.m. at the 

Community Development District Administrative Offices, 950 Davis Pond Boulevard, St. Johns, 

Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

 

 Susan S. Beaugrand Chairperson 
 Kathleen P. Minnis Vice Chairman 
 Al Abbatiello Assistant Secretary 
 April Spears Assistant Secretary 
 Brian Pincket Assistant Secretary 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 James Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber District Counsel 
 Matt Maggiore District Engineer 
 Mike Lucas Basham Lucas 
 Chris Commins Basham Lucas 
 Stacie Hernandez Julington Creek CDD 
 Ashley McVeigh Julington Creek CDD 
 Laura Callahan  Julington Creek CDD 
 Shelly Timbol Julington Creek CDD 
 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Beaugrand called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the March 13, 
2007 Meeting 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the next item on the agenda is approval of the minutes of the 

March 13, 2007 meeting.  Are there any corrections to the minutes?  On page 3, the third 

paragraph down that starts Mr. Lucas, that third line, JEA has been submitted but we are waiting 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

2 

on that return we get from them.  Are we talking about response?  It should be response instead 

of return.  On the bottom of page 5 where it says Mr. Wash, that should be Dosche and also on 

page 6.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Minnis seconded by Mr. Abbatiello with all 
in favor the minutes of the March 13, 2007 meeting were approved 
as revised. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion on Recreation Complex 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated next is discussion on the recreation complex. 

 Mr. Lucas stated we have a lot of anxious contractors wondering when the decision is 

going to be made and I have informed them that I assume the recommendation will be made to 

the board this evening and we will be able to inform them of the results.  Until the contractor is 

selected I can’t get a permit yet but I don’t know if it is possible to give a verbal notice to 

proceed, that way the winning contractor can get started on the shop drawings for the trusses.   

 Ms. Beaugrand asked can we do that? 

 Mr. Haber responded no, we are to award the contract.  It is very likely the contract will 

be signed and you can move forward with it but giving an oral notice to proceed before the actual 

contract is signed, if for any reasons there are problems with actually getting the contract 

executed and if for whatever reason the contract doesn’t go through there is some liability that 

the district may be responsible for paying something that they might not have wanted done 

because the contract was never executed.  There is some liability associated with doing 

something orally before you have a signed contract.  That would be my concern. 

 Mr. Lucas stated the timeframe of getting the contract is probably going to take a couple 

of weeks to get the contract between the contractor and the CDD. 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked doesn’t it call for 10 days? 

 Mr. Haber responded yes, I think it is 10 days from the date the contract is awarded 

which will likely be today. 

 Mr. Lucas stated I was just trying to get things going.  I know some of them will proceed 

with a verbal. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated last month you were talking about the water management district, 

JEA and the rest of the permits you thought you would have approvals. 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

3 

 Mr. Lucas responded I just got comments back from the water management district that I 

haven’t had a chance to look at but there are just a couple of outstanding issues.  As soon as we 

get these responses they are ready to approve. 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked what about JEA and the rest of them? 

 Ms. Minnis stated maybe I missed the connection but if we don’t have the permits and we 

gave that approval, what could they do? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded do the shop drawings for the trusses. 

 Mr. Lucas stated the truss shop drawings are part of the things you need that St. Johns 

County requires for the permit.  That is normally between a two and three week process.  We 

were just trying to jump the gun and get going on that.  Durbin I think we got the permit in 2 ½ 

weeks.   

 Ms. Beaugrand asked after submission with the shop drawings? 

 Mr. Lucas responded yes.  Chris is here from my office and we do have final landscape 

plans.  I don’t know if you would like to review those. 

 Mr. Commins stated we should be going out to bid next week. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated why don’t you go ahead and pass those out. 

 Mr. Commins stated this is what we refer to as 95% checks in the CDD booklet for the 

bid package.  This is both landscaping and irrigation. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the package that we saw several months ago were there any 

significant changes from what we saw before to what we are seeing today? 

 Mr. Commins responded no, we did include all those trees.  The last presentation we 

didn’t have the trees and that wetland crossover and what we did was an alternating rhythm of 

live oaks that will give us a full canopy down the roadway.  We are watching closely and setting 

up the bid for unit prices so that if we do run up against our budget we can make some 

adjustments but I think we are right in the ballpark based on our estimates.  It is for a full 

automatic irrigation system, water supply with well and pump, full landscaping.  Some specimen 

material by the sign at the front entry so most of our bang for the buck is at the amenity center.   

 Mr. Haber stated with respect to the bid, with the construction contract that we are 

looking at today if the board approves the infrastructure review committee as well as the 

evaluation criteria, I believe the same process will need to be followed for this bid as well.  Was 

it contemplated that those same criteria and committee would be used for this bid or has this 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

4 

board addressed that?  I don’t think it is something that we can’t address today.  It is not 

uncommon that multiple contracts would have the same criteria and use the same committee but 

I think the board should probably address that issue before we move forward with the bid so that 

way those are set up for the bid. 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked isn’t there a threshold to have to do an RFP or RFQ on? 

 Mr. Haber responded there is.   

 Ms. Beaugrand asked what is the expected cost of the landscaping? 

 Mr. Commins responded $450,000. 

 Mr. Haber responded you are going to exceed the threshold.   

 Ms. Minnis stated even though Racetrack and S.R. 13 didn’t go to that price we went 

with an RFP as well because Jonathan told us that we had the option to do it.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated this is above the threshold so it doesn’t matter. 

 Ms. Minnis stated even if it were below we could choose to require it. 

 Mr. Haber responded yes.  You could do whatever process you deemed fit.   

 Ms. Minnis stated since this just came up is there any other thing in the process that 

should be put on the table to know about? 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked are there any other bids that were not included in the primary bid 

that we have already looked at from a committee standpoint? 

 Mr. Lucas responded probably the signs. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the signage wasn’t included in that? 

 Mr. Lucas responded no. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated that should be well under the threshold. 

 Mr. Lucas responded $25,000. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we shouldn’t have to go through a formal bid process on that.  You 

are saying we have to do the very same process that we just did with the general contractors as 

we will have to do on the landscape contractor. 

 Mr. Haber stated and to the extent that you want to get that process started prior to your 

next meeting, what you would need to decide today is the evaluation criteria and you could use 

the same criteria.  It is not uncommon to use the same criteria.  Also you could say it is the same 

committee you established for the prior piece that you just reviewed.  I would also seek 

authorization to direct district staff to prepare the actual RFP package which this would be a part 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

5 

of but there is more to it as you know, the qualifications and those things.  Because you have 

already seen the one that went for the job you are going to be approving today, if the board is 

comfortable you could authorize the chairperson or someone else to have final sign off on a 

package that will be substantially similar to the one you did last time but with just a different 

type of work.  That way you would be able to get the process started without waiting until your 

next meeting.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I think in the interest of time we probably need to go ahead and do 

that then. 

 Mr. Pincket asked in terms of the landscaping, is there really a timing crunch or concern? 

 Mr. Lucas responded no. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we can start the process of getting the process moving instead of 

waiting until next month. 

 Mr. Haber stated I think probably the biggest factor that the board would want to consider 

is whether they are comfortable with giving someone the authority for final sign off on the actual 

RFP package or you could at least set the infrastructure committee to define the criteria and have 

the package come back to the next meeting, approve the package and get the ad out and 

published subsequent to the next meeting.   

 Ms. Beaugrand asked does it matter? 

 Mr. Commins asked when is your next meeting? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded one month. 

 Mr. Commins responded that would be fine.  I would probably recommend proceeding 

that would be a good timeframe because we are seeing some pretty good prices right now.  

Certainly there is no construction so there is no time crunch on that end but there have been some 

competitive prices just as the market has turned a little bit.   

 Mr. Lucas stated we want to make sure that coordination between the contractor and the 

landscape person as far as anything that is going in that road we want to make sure that gets put 

in. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I still think we have time for that.  We need to go ahead and start 

the process so we need to authorize staff. 

 Mr. Haber stated I think there are three processes.  You would want to authorize the 

criteria, you want to nominate the committee and then authorize staff to move forward with the 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

6 

preparation of the package and then depending on what you want either to put the package in 

front of you to then approve and start the ad or to grant the authority to one of the board 

members to approve the package and authorize the ad subsequent to approval of the package so 

you could start the 30 days for the ad to be out there prior to your next meeting. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I don’t think we need to expedite.  I think what we can do if the 

board agrees is to do those first three items, set the criteria, nominate the committee and 

authorize staff to put the package together which is exactly what we did previously.   

 Mr. Haber stated that sounds like a good idea.   

 Ms. Beaugrand asked does anyone else want to be on this committee or those that were 

on the original committee for the RFP if they want to stay on or don’t want to stay on.  It is a 

matter of who wants to be on the committee.  I think we need to have someone from Basham & 

Lucas and ETM and Stacie and then it is a matter of what board members would like to be on the 

committee. 

 Mr. Pincket stated if the existing committee members want to stay on, I’m fine with that. 

 Mr. Abbatiello stated I am okay staying on. 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked does anyone else want to be on it?  The first thing is we need to do 

a motion to authorize staff to set the criteria. 

 Mr. Haber stated you just want to authorize the evaluation criteria. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated which is what we have already used that we just passed around. 

 Mr. Haber stated if you are comfortable with the criteria that you used last time then you 

can just say you are going to continue to use the same criteria you approved for the last RFP 

package. 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked is everyone okay with using that same criteria which I think was 

effective in how we went through our process last week.   

 Ms. Minnis stated I’m trying to think of the last time we did one of the landscape ones 

and I don’t know if you ran into this, the submissions were way off. 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded that proposal was a little bit different.  We had maintenance 

and the irrigation and the parts and replacement issue.  This is submission for actually doing the 

landscape plan, getting the plants and putting the irrigation in.  We are not talking about 

maintenance and the rest.  It is more of a GC kind of issue.   



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

7 

 Ms. Minnis stated they are going to go from start to finish to putting everything in so I’m 

fine with that.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Minnis seconded by Mr. Pincket with all in 
favor the same criteria used for the recreation center contract was 
approved to be used for the landscape contractor.  

 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we need a motion to nominate a committee that would include a 

representative from Basham & Lucas, a representative from ETM, Stacie Hernandez, Al 

Abbatiello and Susan Beaugrand. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Minnis seconded by Mr. Pincket with all in 
favor the landscape evaluation committee will be: a representative 
from Basham & Lucas, a representative from ETM, Stacie 
Hernandez, Al Abbatiello and Susan Beaugrand.  

 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we also need a motion to authorize staff to put the submission 

package together for the landscape proposal. 

 Ms. Minnis asked staff being Basham & Lucas or everybody. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated staff. 

 Mr. Pincket asked is that proposal going to come back to us? 

 Mr. Haber responded I think that is the intent. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated that will come back to us just like the other one. 

 Mr. Haber stated you can direct staff to begin that process and we can do that. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Pincket seconded by Ms. Minnis with all in 
favor staff was directed to prepare the RFP package for the 
landscape plans.  

 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we will get it back at our next meeting and like we did the last one 

we will set the dates.  On the agenda we will need to approve that package and set the dates to 

have a committee meeting.  We will have to figure the advertising and get the submission date 

and then the meeting date for the committee. 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

8 

 Mr. Pincket asked with the kind of contract that we enter into with whomever gets the bid 

will we have a great amount of flexibility on our part to modify the plans?  In other words I 

know there is going to be a price per unit depending on the trees and that is going to be critical 

and we are going to want to hold them to that.  As we go through this process we might change 

our minds. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated that would be a change order where it could be no change in 

dollars, it could be a deduct or an add.   

 Mr. Pincket stated my concern is if we go more on the deduct side what kind of discounts 

will you get for that? 

 Mr. Commins stated we fully agree and put our bid packages together for both landscape 

and irrigation and request as much unit price information as possible.  In that scenario then we 

get them in a competitive arena pricing those items for the installation.  Rather than if we just 

went to bid a lump sum.  We will look to build in all of the flexibility as possible and we have 

found unit pricing to be the most effective means to doing it. 

 Ms. Minnis stated kind of to Brian’s question, let’s say and I didn’t see this specifically in 

here but I thought about palm trees by the pool, let’s say your specifications say a 32’ tall palm 

tree and they came in with a unit price, would you also put in like 26’ to lower the price?  It may 

lower the aesthetic value a little but bring the price down if the price was getting too high?  Do 

you put that kind of detail in? 

 Mr. Commins responded I usually don’t to that extent but we could build in the 

flexibility. 

 Ms. Minnis asked is that what you were thinking? 

 Mr. Pincket responded I wanted all kinds of flexibility. 

 Mr. Commins stated I can incorporate those.  Our plant schedule becomes a unit price list 

and then I will add an additional unit price list to ask for live oak trees 4” 6” 8” and that would 

be a good way to build in flexibility.  It is probably mostly on the tree material.  I don’t want it to 

get to ad nauseam.  We know what the high ticket items are and what will give you the best 

flexibility.  That is a good idea and I would be happy to include that.   

 Mr. Pincket stated I see trees on a picture laid out and my concern is as this starts getting 

built that it is going to look different than it does on this map.   



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

9 

 Mr. Lucas stated the only other thing, Matt and I are checking into as requested to 

combining the events and entry sign as far as the height restrictions.   

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Recreation Center 
Construction Proposals 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the next item on the agenda is consideration of recreation center 

construction proposals.  The committee met two weeks ago.  Mike, Matt, Stacie, myself and Al 

and we went over the three proposals, Dicky Smith, Edwards Group and the Tower Group.  We 

walked through the different criteria that we had decided as a group to use to assess the proposals 

that the contractors made.  You see the ultimate valuations that we all made as a group.  We kind 

of individually placed our assignment and a lot of us changed those assessments as we talked 

through them and got different feedback from various other people on the committee who had a 

little more experience or whatever.  These valuation numbers that you see are group numbers 

that we came to a conclusion as a group, a consensus as a group as to how to assign them.  That 

way we were all kind of using the same variables rather than one person hitting more for X 

reason and the other person hit for X reason so it made it more consistent by discussing it as a 

group and making a decision as a group how to assess them.   

 If you look at the first criteria which was personnel had a total possible value of 10 

points.  Under Dicky Smith we assigned 8 /12 point value.  Where our deducts came in was 

based on the fact that they really didn’t give us much detail regarding their staff that they would 

use as well as discussion regarding their current work load.  We did a 1 point deduct based on the 

workload discussion and we gave half a point deduct based on the lack of staffing discussion.   

 Mr. Pincket asked what did the personnel component of his bid contain? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded it didn’t go into as much detail as we would have liked. 

 Mr. Pincket asked the particular individuals that would be assigned? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded exactly.   

 Mr. Pincket stated but the overall experience of the personnel was there. 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded yes.  We know that for a fact with this particular company 

because they have done a significant number of projects in our market.   

 I don’t know if you remember the criteria but I will read it.  Personnel which included for 

example geographic location of the firms headquarters or permanent office in relation to the 

project, capability and experience of key personnel including the project manager, field 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

10 

supervisor, present ability to manage this project, evaluation of existing workload and proposed 

staffing levels.  That gives you an idea of what was included in the personnel criteria.   

 Under the Edwards Group we gave them a deduct under headquarters location because 

they are located in Ocala versus in the Jacksonville metropolitan area.  That was a 2 ½ point 

deduct.  Then we gave them a 3 point deduct under personnel because they actually gave us a lot 

of detail under their personnel and the person assigned to be the project manager for the actual 

clubhouse was someone that several of us were familiar with, it was actually Bob Mathews, Jr. 

who is the son of Bob Mathews who owned Bob Mathews Construction who had a difficult time 

completing the San Juan Del Rio Church as well as two of our schools in this market, ultimately 

went bankrupt and we just didn’t have the confidence of having that particular individual as a 

supervisor for the main part of our project.  As a result of that we did a deduct because of that.  

That gave them a total value of 5 ½ points.   

 For the Tower Group their total value came in at 7.  We deducted 2 points based on their 

lack of experience for amenity centers and we also gave them a 1 point deduct because of not 

disclosing the workload.  There was some workload discussed within the resumes of the 

individuals they were going to assign so you could tell what schools they were working on in our 

market but it didn’t really give us a very good idea of exactly what workload they had going 

now.  That concluded the personnel with Dicky Smith at 8 ½, Edwards at 5 ½ and Tower Group 

at 7. 

 Under proposers experience the criteria included past record and experience of the 

respondents similar projects, volume of work previously performed by the firm, past 

performance for other CDDs and other contracts, character, integrity, reputation of respondent. 

 Under proposers experience there is a 20 point possible total.  Under Dicky Smith we 

gave them the full 20 points based on what we know about the company, what projects they have 

been involved in, references, etc. we felt they deserved the full 20 points.   

 Mr. Pincket stated you mentioned references, I was just going to ask a question about 

that.  Were their references in the proposal itself? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded yes.  In some cases there were physical references and in other 

cases they gave us names and some of the committee members did make phone calls to the 

references.   



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

11 

 Mr. Pincket asked did any of the committee members make contact with any of the 

references for Dicky Smith? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded yes, I did.  Others may have as well.  We gave them the full 20 

point value.   

 Under Edwards Construction we deducted for personnel 6 points again for the same 

reason that we deducted under personnel category above, integrity, reputation, character, we had 

an issue based on that superintendent.   

 Under the Tower Group we deducted 7 points and that 7 point deduction was entirely 

related to their lack of experience in amenity centers as well as dealing with community 

development districts.  That put Dicky Smith at 20, Edwards at 14 and the Tower Group at 13. 

 The next criteria was understanding scope of work, extent to which the proposal 

demonstrates and understanding the district’s needs for the services requested.  Total available 

points was 10.  In this case we gave both Edwards and Dicky Smith the full 10 points.  Both of 

them had extensive experience in projects similar in nature to this, visible projects within our 

market that anyone can walk into and see the quality of work. 

 Mr. Pincket asked did the proposal itself demonstrate understanding? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded yes.  You are more than welcome to take a look at these if you 

want to take them home with you or whatever.  There were the lists of projects they had been 

involved in.  Some had pictures of the projects so it was very clear what type of work they had 

done in the past, examples of amenity centers in Edwards’ case and Dicky Smith’s case.   

 Ms. Minnis stated to Brian’s point.  Doesn’t all of this information have to be public 

record as well? 

 Mr. Haber responded yes the bids that they submitted are a public record. 

 Ms. Minnis asked as well as this detailed explanation that will be record of this minute. 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded correct.  Then the Tower Group we gave them a deduct of 3 

mainly because the verbiage under their scope of work was evident that there was a lot of cut and 

paste, didn’t have a lot of discussion regarding amenity centers and recreational projects, the 

assumption was that they really haven’t been involved in that type.  We did hit them for that 

fully understanding scope of work based on the cut and paste evidence within the proposal itself.  

Under that with a 10 point possibility, Dicky Smith and Edwards both had 10 and Tower Group 

had 7. 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

12 

 The next item is financial capability and the criteria includes extent to which the proposal 

demonstrates the adequacy of the proposers financial resources and stability as a business entity 

necessary to complete the services required.  There was a total value available of 15 points under 

this criteria.  There were full financials for the Tower Group included, pretty decent financial 

statements for Edwards but no financial statement submission for Dicky Smith and it said will 

provide at request.  We deducted 5 points for no financial disclosure under Dicky Smith and only 

gave him 10 points for this category. 

 Mr. Pincket asked what was the basis for giving him any points for financial capability?  

Did he meet any of the criteria in the proposal? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded it is evident that he has the capability of doing the projects 

based on what he is involved in now showing the amount of work, the value of the contract work 

and knowing what he has accomplished in the past.  There is inherent knowledge from the 

proposal to understand his capability of being able to complete the project from a financial 

standpoint.   

 Mr. Pincket asked have any of the members of the committee worked on projects with 

Dicky Smith? 

 Mr. Lucas responded he just completed Eagle Landing, all three phases, he did Bartram 

Springs, Oakleaf Plantation both phase 1 and phase 2. 

 Mr. Pincket asked did you work with him on any of those projects? 

 Mr. Lucas responded yes, I worked with him on Bartram Springs, Paul worked with him 

on the original one here, I directly worked with him on all of Eagle Landing and I worked with 

him on Durbin Crossing.   

 Mr. Pincket stated I’m not sure if you were permitted to have discussed directly to 

supplement these proposals in any way. 

 Mr. Haber stated you can ask questions of clarification but no supplemental information 

can be provided other than what was in the package.   

 Mr. Pincket stated so if you said I want to see your financials they were not permitted to 

provide that? 

 Mr. Haber responded the RFP package actually provides that financials could be 

requested so because the package provides for that you could as for financials but you couldn’t 

ask for supplemental information that wasn’t specifically provided for in the package. 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

13 

 Mr. Pincket asked did anybody follow-up and ask him for financials? 

 Mr. Lucas responded he will provide if you request it.   

 Mr. Pincket stated he just doesn’t like to release it, I can understand that and whatever he 

provides to us is a matter of public record. 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded that is exactly right.  I will tell you that the Hutson Companies 

who did Oakleaf Plantation is probably one of the pickiest developers out there and he did their 

original amenity center which he was under an extreme timeline to get that done and they 

contracted for him to do their second one.  They are one in particular that I spoke with and they 

have the highest regard for him and he is in fact doing some renovation work on David Hutson’s 

own home which I guarantee you if it weren’t the right thing, he wouldn’t be there. 

 To go on with that we did a deduct on Dicky Smith of 5 points because of the lack of 

financial disclosure.  Under Edwards Group they did provide financials, we did a deduct of 3 

points based on the company’s size and that was kind of in comparison to the Tower Group who 

provided financial statements and they were extremely strong financially.  They were kind of the 

benchmark in this particular category.  It is a large company, large net worth, etc. so in 

comparison to the financial strength of the Tower Group we did a deduct to Edwards of 3 points.  

We ended up with 10 for Dicky Smith, 12 for Edwards and 15 for Tower. 

 The next category is price and this category is broken up into two point totals.  15 points 

will be awarded to the proposer submitting the lowest bid and then deducts will be based on 

percentages of that bid and 10 points are allocated for the reasonableness of the unit prices and 

the balance of the bid.  Under this the lowest bid was submitted by Dicky Smith, the second 

lowest bid was submitted by the Tower Group and the third lowest bid was submitted by 

Edwards.  We gave Dicky Smith 15 points and all of these are based on percentages, Dicky 

Smith was 15, Edwards was 12 and Tower Group was 13.  Then the 10 points based on the unit 

prices and the balance was really due to the completeness of the bids. We deducted 1 point for 

Dicky Smith because his unit prices were not complete, he did some lump sum pricing in his.  I 

don’t remember for Edwards why we did a deduct of 3 points and I don’t remember on Tower.  

There were some errors in the Tower. 

 Mr. Lucas stated Edwards didn’t provide a list of the subs.   

 Mr. Pincket asked what were the bids? 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

14 

 Mr. Maggiore responded the total for Dicky Smith was $9,619,131, Tower Group was the 

second low bidder at $10,708,614.15 and Edwards was the highest at $11,915,472. 

 Mr. Pincket asked when we issued the bonds what number were we contemplating?  I 

know we erred on the high side.  What was our target? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded I know it was above $10 million.   

 Mr. Maggiore stated $13.5 million. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated but that included some other numbers. 

 Mr. Lucas stated we had figured total construction of $11,656,000 but that included 

$450,000 for the irrigation and $20,000 for the signage. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated so we have done well.   

 Mr. Pincket stated yes. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we gave full value to the Tower Group for the balance of their bid, 

we deducted 1 point for Dicky Smith because of some unit pricing, and we deducted 3 points 

from Edwards because of the lack of the list of subcontractors.  In that category Dicky Smith had 

15 and 9 points, Edwards had 12 and 7 and Tower Group had 13 and 10. 

 The last category was schedule and this includes the demonstration of proposers 

understanding through the presentation in the proposal the milestone schedule of how to meet the 

required substantial and final completion dates.  Consideration will be given to proposers that 

indicate an ability to credibly complete the project in advance of the required substantial and 

final completion dates without a premium cost for accelerated work.   

 In going through the proposals both Edwards and Tower Group gave very detailed 

schedules.  To give you an example of what I’m talking about, the scheduling of the work which 

is similar to this type of thing, including breaking down the project by skate park or by road 

work or construction of the building itself.  Dicky Smith also did a schedule but his was not as 

detailed.  It was one schedule timeline that included everything.  Actually the Tower Group did 

not separate everything.  They had a detailed single schedule but they did note that there were 

issues and timing of when we could do construction around here for the eagle zone.  The other 

two contracts, Dicky Smith and Edwards did not recognize the timing issue relating to the eagle.  

Edwards had extreme detail with the schedules, Dicky Smith was more summarized and did not 

have the detail which we can certainly make sure that he does.  Dicky Smith had a deduct 

because of not recognizing the issue with the eagle and not having as much detail on the 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

15 

scheduling so we gave him 16 points so it was a 4 point deduct with a possible total value of 20 

points.  Edwards we deducted 2 points because of not recognizing the eagle and Tower Group 

we deducted 2 points because of the lack of detail on his schedule.  They both had 18 points and 

Dicky Smith had 16 points.  

 The total would be Dicky Smith at 88 ½, Edwards at 78 ½ and the Tower Group at 83.  

After all of the discussion I think I speak for the committee members but you are welcome to 

speak up, we were all very comfortable with the result being that Dicky Smith came up with the 

highest points.  Certainly a very good reputation in town, they have done a lot of projects in 

town, things that we can all go and take a look at and touch and feel and talk to people who have 

been involved in them.  That is our recommendation, to accept the bid proposal from Dicky 

Smith & Company. 

 Mr. Abbatiello stated as I sat through this process everyone who was part of the group 

did have give and take on their ideas on evaluating the bids and when it came down to point 

level.  I did talk to the county construction people and they were extremely ecstatic on Dicky 

Smith as to his integrity and reliability, responsibility and they were glowing.  I am very 

comfortable with that.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the interesting thing is I think all three companies are really good 

companies.  I would be comfortable with Dicky and Edwards being able to do the job if we could 

be assured that certain individuals were not involved from Edwards.  The Tower Group is a great 

company, they have done great work for our school district, unfortunately no work on this type 

of project so I don’t necessarily think we would lose with any of these but I think without 

question from an experience standpoint that the contractor that we thought was the best is the 

best.   

 Ms. Minnis stated I had a question because of Brian’s point on the financials that when 

you took off 5, even if you took off everything, they would have come in equal with Edwards, so 

whether it was 5 or 10, I didn’t know if there was any tie breaker type of rule that was 

established if that were to happen before this started. 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded we didn’t but if that had been the case then the tower Group 

would have had the highest bid.  I don’t know what we would have done in that case if we would 

have gone back and looked at the criteria again.  I don’t know that anyone was necessarily 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

16 

comfortable maybe having Tower Group as the GC when they hadn’t done any amenity centers.  

It is hard to go back and think about what could have happened.   

 Ms. Minnis stated so the final numbers being 88.5 for Dicky Smith, 78.5 for Edwards and 

83 for the Tower Group. 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked does anyone else have any discussion or questions for any of the 

committee members? 

 Ms. Minnis responded I have done this but not at this scale so I know the discussion that 

went on and I know the difficulty of doing this and I know you would have had to put a lot of 

work into going through everything and evaluating it.  I appreciate the work that you did.  I am 

comfortable with what we have. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we have Resolution 2007-10. 

 Mr. Haber stated I would note that this resolution was emailed to the board earlier today.  

The resolution you have before you is somewhat different than the resolution that was emailed to 

you.  Substantively it is the same, the purpose of this resolution is for the board to formally 

award the contract to the most responsive proposer of the three you just reviewed, essentially 

accepting the infrastructure review committee’s recommendation.  The difference between what 

you have in front of you and the one that was emailed to you is the one you previously received 

mentioned the infrastructure review committee and kind of gave the impression that it was the 

review committee that was going to be awarding the contract where this one more clearly states 

that it is the board awarding the contract based on the infrastructure review committee’s 

recommendation.  What this resolution also does is a legislative finding of the board that it is in 

the best interest of the board to move forward with Dicky Smith.  You noted that Dicky Smith’s 

proposal didn’t have the financial information and didn’t have the same specificity on the line 

items.  While we don’t think that is necessarily an issue the RFP package provided that any 

minor irregularities could be waived by the board if it was in the best interest of the district.  

What this resolution further does is provides that finding in the resolution that they are minor 

irregularities that are waived by this board.  It is more of a formality putting everyone on notice 

that to the extent that you are agreeable to the resolution you are awarding the contract to Dicky 

Smith.  It also allows staff to give notice to all three proposers and what that does is there is a 72 

hour period in which proposers could contest your decision.  That starts the 72 hour clock for any 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

17 

notice they would need to file.  Your adoption of this resolution would also authorize staff to 

send that notice to start that time process.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Pincket seconded by Ms. Minnis with all in 
favor Resolution 2007-10 was approved.  

 

 Ms. Behrmann asked what was the timeline? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded they were all the same, 12 months which is what our requested 

timeline was and that is 12 months from the start date once we have permits. 

 Mr. Lucas asked are you going to contact all three? 

 Mr. Haber responded generally it comes from whoever sent out the RFP package.  It 

would generally come from ETM or your firm as the entity that had the prior contact with the 

contractors although the language on the 72 hour protest is in the letter.  I can email that letter if 

you tell me who to email it to.   

 Ms. Beaugrand asked who had the primary contact with the GCs? 

 Mr. Maggiore stated Mike did. 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked why don’t we let you spearhead that and work with Wes tomorrow 

getting the right language and getting that letter out.  I guess we fax the letter to them and mail? 

 Mr. Haber stated I think we fax and generally overnight. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated as far as working on the substance of the contract. 

 Mr. Haber stated because there was a contract in the RFP package, that serves as the 

basis.  That is something we can work in consult with you as well, getting the contract signed. 

 Mr. Lucas stated there are certainly items that can be VE.  There are things that Stacie 

was talking about at the skate park if you want to reduce it.  I know value engineering things that 

we can do to get the number down.  When you are entering this contract how are these VE items 

taken into account? 

 Mr. Haber responded that is all based on the language of the contract but to the extent 

that you are going to value engineer that is going to make a substantive change to what was 

contemplated by the proposal then it would need to be in a change order to be approved by the 

board. 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

18 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I think we are going to want to know what is being changed if it is 

substantive.   

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Lifeguard Job Description 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the next item is consideration of lifeguard job description.   

 Ms. Hernandez stated this is not really a consideration.  The reason I put this in here is I 

wanted to give you an example of our expectations and requirements for lifeguards.  You can see 

who the person reports to, our philosophy, function, conduct, qualifications, responsibilities in 

terms of safety as well as administrative responsibilities.  I would like you to take a look at this 

as we move forward and we have a lot more departments as far as fitness, tennis, child watch.  

This is just to give you an idea of the descriptions.  However, the next page we have a website 

policy.   

 Ms. Minnis stated I have a comment on the lifeguard and might go over to the website 

because I have a comment about that.  Conduct references that piece but can you legally require 

a person to volunteer?  It says you must volunteer 2 to 3 fundraisers.  Can we legally require that 

in a job description without paying them? 

 Mr. Haber responded that is a good question.  You can certainly revise the language.  

You can require someone to participate in a fundraiser as part of a job description and that is 

what they are getting paid for.  Requiring someone to do something by definition is no longer 

volunteering it.  I don’t know that you can require someone to volunteer for something because 

then your requirement of that is no longer volunteering.  If you want to require them to do 

something I wouldn’t term it volunteer.  I would term it as you are required to participate and 

make that part of the scope of the job description and they are getting paid for filling the job 

description by participating in that.  I wouldn’t use the term volunteer.   

 Mr. Pincket asked are you suggesting that you pay them for the time they are doing this 

other activity if you wanted it included in the job description? 

 Mr. Haber asked how are they paid?  Is it on an hourly basis? 

 Ms. Hernandez responded it is a fundraiser to help pay for their uniforms.  It also pays for 

staff recognition if we have parties, if we have mixers.  It is to help fund going back to the 

lifeguards themselves.   

 Mr. Pincket asked you are not paying them to participate in that? 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

19 

 Ms. Hernandez responded no.  If they don’t show up, they don’t show up. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated based on the bank, they strongly encourage participation in 

community events but they give us time within our work week and we are paid to do it.  It is time 

away from work for volunteer efforts, the same with the school volunteers.  It is a paid event but 

we are representing the company and the community by doing so.  It is a little bit different.  We 

need to look into that a little bit more just to make sure we don’t step into anything unwittingly. 

 Ms. Minnis stated I don’t have a problem at all with the events because I have seen them 

out there and I’m never able to get up there before noon.  I don’t have an issue with the events 

themselves.  It is if this were to come back without pay. 

 Mr. Pincket stated drug and alcohol screening in here, is our policy that they will agree to 

a drug and alcohol test at any time that we ask them and if they refuse it is grounds for 

termination?   

 Ms. Hernandez responded yes. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated it is prior to employment as well. 

 Ms. Hernandez responded correct. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Personal Web Site Policy 

 Ms. Minnis stated on the website policy, I think no employee of any type should have any 

reference to the CDD or their work on a personal website at all.  It specifically says no juveniles, 

I agree with that even if they were to encounter them but I don’t think on your personal space 

they should be referencing anything about their job.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated you could say I work as a lifeguard.  I think saying they work at 

Julington Creek Plantation pool as a lifeguard invites the wrong thing. 

 Ms. Hernandez stated we have this in place now so I brought it to your attention so you 

could know what is currently going on.  We are constantly reviewing this. 

 Mr. Pincket stated I think we need more specificity on this.  I will give you some 

examples.  On the first comment here, we are basically saying that they are strongly cautioned to 

maintain an image on their site that they would deem appropriate for their employer to view at 

any time.  That could be anything.  You are giving them the discretion in terms of what they 

think is appropriate or not.  I understand it is kind of a general tem but I would like some 

specificity.  Another comment is it is never acceptable when an employee works with or around 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

20 

young children to be depicted on site engaging in any type of illegal or immoral behavior.  What 

is moral or immoral is subject to interpretation.  There could be perfectly legal activity on there 

that we would not want to see a lifeguard’s picture on that site.   

 Ms. Hernandez stated I left it vague for a reason because I don’t know what you want me 

to put on here. 

 Ms. Minnis stated I think Brian has a point it is what they, the employee, deems legal or 

deems appropriate.  About 6 months ago there was an article in the Times Union and it was 

written by the Chicago Tribune or Associated Press, it was about the impact of people’s myspace 

when they went to interviews, their employers go out and start looking at that.  This is letting 

them know that if Stacie doesn’t think it is appropriate or if I were to come to Stacie and say I 

didn’t think it was appropriate that we can take action.  They may think it is appropriate and that 

is theirs but this is telling them that someone else can be judging them. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I don’t think this says that if Stacie for example were to go out and 

look at Laura’s website and thought it was inappropriate that she could come back and reprimand 

Laura for it.  I don’t think that is what this says.  It is subjective, Brian is right.  Strongly caution 

to maintain an image on your website that you would deem appropriate for your employer to 

view.  Laura might think it is appropriate but Stacie may not.  I agree it is really broad.  I think 

some research probably needs to be done on this. 

 Mr. Pincket stated I saw not too long ago an employer taking action against an employee 

on something that was on myspace that was totally legal and done outside the scope of their 

employment and not during work but they wanted to fire this employee for that. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated it is the same thing that there was an article not too long ago about 

a principal who suspended a student because of comments that student made on their myspace 

about the school.  It wasn’t necessarily a threatening kind of comment either.   

 Mr. Pincket asked do you have a labor employment attorney in your firm? 

 Mr. Haber responded no. 

 Mr. Pincket stated I don’t either but I know those lawyers pretty much know where the 

line is and they know how you can be safe on one side of the line and they know where we have 

overstepped it and there is some area in-between that is gray but we should push it as far as we 

can that we think is legal and appropriate. 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

21 

 Ms. Hernandez stated Paychex does have legal.  They haven’t made a decision on this 

yet.  It is so new but what we are looking at here more so with children under 21 than we are 

looking at adult behavior is that kids under 21 drink and you are going to see a lot of websites 

with a lot of people drinking.  The problem with that is those that are participating in something 

that is illegal might also be people taking care of our children.  That is what we don’t want to 

happen.  People are randomly outside the CDD looking at other people’s web spaces and 

bringing it to people’s attention.  We could have a homeowner here coming into someone’s 

website that shows a teenager drinking and they know that teenager works here. 

 Mr. Haber stated for that specific concern that is an objective you cannot have anything 

on your website showing you breaking the law if you are underage and you are drinking you are 

breaking the law.   

 Ms. Hernandez stated at our lifeguard orientation we go through manuals, policies and 

procedures, the lifeguard job description, we go through the website policy and we have made 

mention that illegal means underage drinking and we have given them the information.  We have 

given them what we think is inappropriate.   

 Mr. Pincket stated you have told them there are no second chances; this is strictly 

enforced. 

 Ms. Hernandez responded correct.  We need to decide how far we go with this. 

 Mr. Pincket stated you are waiting on Paychex to give you more guidance. 

 Ms. Hernandez stated I don’t think I’m going to get anything any time soon. 

 Mr. Pincket stated we have a payroll service too and they provide a lot of not legal advice 

but they are helpful and it is not Paychex so I will check with the company we use and see if 

there is something I can give to you that might be better than this. 

 Ms. Minnis stated do we agree that nothing should refer to JCP. 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded yes and none of the pictures should be at the pool even if it is 

an appropriate picture.  There shouldn’t be any pictures located at the pool on their website.  We 

might have something showing our swim team at a meet or something but that is a different 

story.   

 Mr. Pincket asked when kids sign up for a team do they sign a waiver of use of any 

pictures in advertising?   

 Ms. Behrmann stated I have never signed anything with that on it. 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

22 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2007-08 
Ratifying Board Members Actions Prior to 
Bond Issuance 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the next item on the agenda is consideration of Resolution 2007-08 

ratifying board members actions prior to the bond issuance.  I think that was also handed out. 

 Mr. Haber stated I think it was emailed a few days ago.  This resolution is really a 

formality.  It should be done closer to the meetings that would have taken place subsequent to the 

bond issuance but you are seeing it now.  We were working with the underwriter and also bond 

counsel in getting the two attachments.  You may recall that prior to the issuance of bonds the 

board approved a delegation resolution that delegated certain authority to the chairperson of the 

board to execute numerous documents with respect to the closing on the bonds.  It also delegated 

an underwriters fee, a maximum interest rate on the bonds as well as the cost of issuance.  What 

this resolution does is it ratifies the actions that the chairperson took as well as district staff with 

respect to issuance of the bonds.  The exhibits are the cost of issuance for the bonds as well as a 

list of all of the documents that were executed with respect to the issuance of the bonds.  It is a 

formality and in all the districts that we represent we put this resolution before the board 

subsequent to their bond issuances. 

 Mr. Pincket stated Wes had clarified for me that the schedule of the estimate of costs, 

those are not firm costs but those are the not to exceed amounts.  The costs actually came in 

below that. 

 Mr. Haber stated that is correct.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Minnis seconded by Mr. Pincket with all in 
favor Resolution 2007-08 was approved.  

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Pay Requests 

 A. No. 163 Payable to Julington Creek Plantation Community Development 
District in the Amount of $9,167.05 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the next item on the agenda is approval of pay requests.  If you turn 

behind Tab 8A you have request no. 163.  This is actually for various items, permits, legal fees, 

etc. relating to permits and ads.  Is this a reimbursement? 

 Mr. Oliver responded it will reimburse the recreation fund from the capital fund. 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

23 

 Ms. Minnis stated this is just the audit trail to move it from one to the other. 

 Mr. Oliver responded correct. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Minnis seconded by Mr. Pincket with all in 
favor pay request no. 163 was approved.  

 

 B. No. 164 Payable to Hopping Green & Sams in the amount of $154.50 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated no. 164 is for Hopping Green for $154.50 and that is relating to the 

RFP criteria. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Minnis seconded by Mr. Pincket with all in 
favor pay request no. 164 was approved.  

 

 C. No. 165 Payable to Basham & Lucas, Inc. in the amount of $23,222.52 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated no. 165 to Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. for $23,222.52.  If 

you look at the detail behind it, it takes everything to 100% with the exception of the last three 

parts, part 12 which is the landscape part 13 which is the signage and the booklets which is the 

reimbursement and meeting attendance.   

 Ms. Minnis stated on no. 11 swimming pool construction document are complete? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded all of the construction documents are actually complete.  The 

landscape plans with the submission will be complete so next month we will probably get 100% 

on that. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Minnis seconded by Mr. Pincket with all in 
favor pay request no. 165 was approved.  

 

 D. No. 166 Payable to Basham & Lucas, Inc. in the amount of $3,200.00 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated no. 166 is to Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. for $3,200.  This 

is relating to contractor prequalification and bid process that we just went through. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Minnis seconded by Mr. Pincket with all in 
favor pay request no. 166 was approved.  

 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

24 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There not being any, the next item followed. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 

 There not being any, the next item followed. 

 

B. Engineer 

 There not being any, the next item followed. 

 

 C. Recreation Facility Manager 

 Ms. Hernandez stated let’s discuss the employee handbook.  I gave that to you two 

months ago.  I’m going to go through the comments I heard from Kathy and Susan and if the rest 

of you have comments let me know.  We will go page by page.   

 The first comment as Kathy told us at the last meeting was on the first page, she wanted 

to make sure that whenever we had Julington Creek Plantation that we had Julington Creek 

Plantation Community Development District (CDD) so that as we talk about the CDD in the rest 

of the document it makes sense. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated it becomes a defined term for the document.   

 Ms. Hernandez stated the second point made was by Susan on page 4, section 1, about 

sexual harassment.  To receive such complaints they all go to me but we need an additional 

person for such complaints on myself.  We need to make mention to the board chairperson on the 

CDD.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated or more discussion on who that second person is.  We need more 

than one.  Stacie can be unavailable or it could be a complaint against Stacie so we have to be 

realistic that we have to make sure we have clear opportunity for any employee to register 

whatever complaint.  That actually is applicable in a couple of different sections in here.   

 Ms. Minnis stated I ran across the same thing, when I cited one I pointed to other pages.  

Rather than keep it at Stacie or one person, let’s say Shelly had a complaint, I have known Shelly 

for years, what if Brian is appointed she may not be comfortable coming to Brian, she may be 

more comfortable coming to me.  Can it be any board member? 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

25 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated that is up to the board. 

 Ms. Minnis stated I would recommend any board member that an employee would feel 

comfortable approaching.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated you don’t even have to say that part but it could be the general 

manager or any board member.   

 Mr. Abbatiello stated I agree. 

 Mr. Pincket stated I agree.   

 Ms. Hernandez stated on the next page the first paragraph we need to add in that 

paragraph email and voicemail.  At the bottom of that paragraph once again we need an 

additional person, the general manager or a board member.   

 The next page, categories of employment, we have an introductory period, we need to 

add for seasonal employees is also 30 days, that was left out.  

 Page 9, section 1, it says upon joining the CDD and it should read, upon employment 

with the CDD.   

 Section 2, page 4, employment reviews, instead of twice a year I suggest once per year. 

 Section 3, page 3, we wanted these categories instead of saying immediately upon hire it 

should say after the 30 day introductory period.   

 The next page we should also add in there 30 days introductory period and personal days. 

 Section 4, page 6, the second paragraph Kathy had a question and it is now a public 

record. 

 Mr. Haber stated I think as employees of the CDD a body of government email between 

employees and probably email that is going to be sent while working is probably a public record.   

 Ms. Minnis stated if Charlie came in and said I want to see all the email that Stacie sent 

to Kathy and at the bottom of it there is a joke, he has the right to see all the email that Stacie 

sent to me. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated that would mean that you would have to create records of all 

emails.  That doesn’t make sense to me.   

 Mr. Pincket asked do we have an obligation if it is a public record to copy it and store it 

in a hard copy? 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I want to have a second opinion.  If you can talk to Jonathan or 

Cheryl on that because if it is something within one of our public board meetings or ad hoc 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

26 

committees or whatever but it seems to take it to an extreme to have any operational email 

between employees to be public record.  That is a cumbersome nightmare potentially.   

 Ms. Minnis stated there are lawsuits against financial institutions and I read this in bank 

technology it is not against your institution or against mine, but it is a discussion of backing up 

email because a claim was made against a bank based on an email that an employee sent to the 

customer regarding their account.  They purged the email system, the customers come back and 

the bank has no recourse. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated that is a different story.   

 Ms. Minnis stated but we are required as public records just like discussions on the board, 

anything is a public record that is why our emails are public record.  If we are not to respond to 

all because it doesn’t cover the sunshine law and we have to fall under these rules what about the 

emails that Jim sends to us? 

 Mr. Haber responded it is my understanding that they are but I will be happy to get that 

second opinion.  The non communicating is a separate issue than public records.  It is the fact 

that we can’t communicate outside the sunshine.  Let me double check on that. 

 Mr. Pincket stated the follow-up question is, are emails public records but do we under 

the public records act then have an obligation to make a copy of every single one.  They might be 

public records but we might not have that.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I get emailed every month by Jim’s office to review the agenda.  

We all get emailed to tell them whether we are going to attend.  I get emails from Mike Lucas 

two or three times a month.  I get them from Matt and I have not kept copies of any of any of that 

stuff.   

 Mr. Haber stated let me look into it and I will let you know at the next meeting. 

 Mr. Maggiore stated in my dealing with public agencies almost all of them now have 

disclaimers at the bottom of their emails that any correspondence with them at the DOT or 

county is generally subject to public records law.  They all have that now.   

 Ms. Hernandez stated section 4, page 10, paragraph 2, Kathy felt that we need more 

explanation in terms of working for competitors.   

 Ms. Minnis stated my question to her was, what is a competitor and we were talking 

about to have a person be a lifeguard here and then go work somewhere else as a lifeguard and 

then she can’t bring that person on because they have another job lifeguarding somewhere else.  



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

27 

My question was did you all think it should be more defined, competitor or were you fine with 

this language. 

 Mr. Pincket asked are we prohibiting a lifeguard from leaving here to work at another 

pool? 

 Ms. Hernandez responded don’t think just in terms of lifeguard, this is all employees.   

 Mr. Pincket asked what competitors do we have?  

 Ms. Hernandez responded we have Palencia, the YMCA. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the thing is that I have a hard time if a lifeguard is only getting 20 

hours a week here and that kid during the summer needs to work fulltime and they have an 

opportunity to work at Palencia or St. Johns Golf & Country and they are able to finagle the 

schedule where it is not a conflict, in that case it is like who cares.   

 Ms. Hernandez stated we work around that.  I’m thinking more the fitness director, is the 

director here. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated you have fitness trainers that independent contract out with 

Balley’s and the YMCA and other places, they teach classes at different places.   

 Ms. Hernandez stated if you want me to take it out I can.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I can understand the first sentence where outside employment must 

not conflict with your responsibilities.  I think that is fair.  If you are going to commit to the 

CDD to work you need to commit.   

 Ms. Minnis stated my first thought was how Brian felt, we are a CDD not a company so 

who is my competitor.  That is why I struggled with this and then she was giving me examples.  I 

agree with Susan if you can get other work with someone else. 

 Ms. Hernandez stated okay I will strike this second sentence.  Section 5, strike what is on 

there and this is the new section, it is highlighted and that is reference to the drug testing.   

 Mr. Pincket asked do we do a criminal background check on anybody that we hire? 

 Ms. Hernandez responded yes everybody. 

 Ms. Minnis stated I don’t remember reading that in here.  To the point that it is spelled 

out, for some reason they don’t realize it is being done, that it is put in here so they are given one 

more chance.  You may tell them but I think it ought to be in writing.   

 Ms. Hernandez responded okay.   



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

28 

 Mr. Pincket stated we don’t own any vehicles and don’t plan to own any vehicles, 

correct. 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded actually on tennis we are going to have a club car to drag the 

courts. 

 Mr. Haber stated there are limitations.  Where would the golf cart go?   

 Ms. Beaugrand responded only on site.   

 Mr. Haber stated I just wanted to make sure that you didn’t plan on driving it on the 

roads. 

 Ms. Hernandez stated the last page again, I will put Julington Creek Plantation CDD.  Do 

you have any additions or changes? 

 Mr. Abbatiello asked can we make it a smoke free workplace? 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated they have to go outside to smoke. 

 Ms. Hernandez stated what I have done here is put them in binders.  You have 

preliminary costs in the beginning.  I haven’t put everything in here yet so we are going to be 

going through this each month and will have your upfront costs, the financial reports which will 

be the O&M which I’m revising again right now.  Recreation department we have 8 paths which 

will consist of administration, aquatic, child watch, fitness, food and beverage, program property 

and tennis.  Hours of operation you will have your overall department hours, pool hours, fitness 

hours and then Tab 2 will have a detail of your main usage.  That is a little confusing.  Take your 

time to read and you will see the different pools as well as the recreation center which will be the 

new pool.  Liability waivers will come.  You will see those in the next couple of months. 

Membership we have our access cards, you will see how I broke that down who gets in, what 

cards they will get, what their ages are and then you will have your annual pass holders.  Rules 

and regulations, Tab 1 signage.  Everything in there is all the information we would ever want 

for signs at the pool.  We don’t have to put all of those out for view.  What you decide you don’t 

want visible will go into the general rules.  Look at the tennis rules, decide what you want and 

the whole thing can go in the general rules and regulations.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated so the signage will be more or less a summary of the primary rules. 

 Ms. Hernandez responded right but I thought I would give you everything and I have 

looked at other pool rules and regulations.    Special events is the last path, those are all things I 

have budgeted right now and you will be able to do those and we will have the staff.  This is for 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

29 

you to review over the next month.  Just make sure that you look at the hours of operation, 

access cards and signage for next month.  Feel free to give me a call with any questions.   

 The only other thing we need to talk about is a play structure at Plantation Park.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we need to fix that.  The facility needs to get fixed and it needs to 

get upgraded.  When they originally put it in and that was back when my children were a lot 

younger and actually playing on that stuff which tells you how long ago it was, it was 1996 when 

they built the pool.  We haven’t done anything materially out there since then and we have 

reserves set aside for that.  Does the whole structure need to be replaced? 

 Ms. Hernandez responded the problem with that structure is C clamps.  They continue to 

break and we continue to replace them.  I can continue to do that.  My thought was to replace it 

with a new and slightly larger play structure.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I personally would be in favor of that.  That is the only play 

structure we have.  We haven’t done that in almost 10 years. 

 Ms. Hernandez stated my thought was to wait until we get closer to the end of the year to 

see what kind of reserves we had for this year.  See how much money I have left in repairs and 

replacement. 

 Ms. Minnis stated I have a question for April since you have younger kids, the play group 

do they meet there or do they meet somewhere else? 

 Ms. Spears responded all different places but we definitely use the park a lot.   

 Ms. Minnis asked when do they meet? 

 Ms. Spears responded it is broken up into different kids and play groups.  It is up to the 

individual groups how they meet during the week. 

 Ms. Minnis stated I just wonder if we got parents who currently have kids that age, I like 

the climbing wall thing and thought I would like it 20’ high so I could play on it too.  I wouldn’t 

want it to be strictly that.  There was one diagram that was all of these little walls.  If we could 

get input from other parents that may have seen other parks or have been to other subdivision 

that does have something, I guess that is what I’m looking for. 

 Ms. Spears stated my only suggestion is it is nice to be in a park area where you have 

maybe a structure that is for smaller children.  Some places will have a section that is lower to 

the ground and more adequate for smaller children and then a section that bigger kids are into as 

well.  That might be a suggestion to have.  As much as our budget will allow would be good.   



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

30 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated I agree. 

 Ms. Minnis stated I do too.   

 Ms. Spears stated I definitely hear a lot of complaints about that playground.  I don’t 

know about putting in trees.  I hear that a lot too, it’s hot and there are no trees, no shade. 

 Ms. Hernandez stated we have trees lined up but we are waiting. 

 Ms. Spears stated I can definitely put the word out and get some feedback. 

 

 D. Manager 

 Mr. Oliver stated we received a letter from St. Johns County on the second quarter impact 

fees we received payment from them in the amount of $11,124. 

 Supervisors fees will now be processed through Paychex so there is a timeline now 

between your March check that you should have normally received by now but they are better 

suited to handle the payroll function.   

 We started the budget process and we will likely have a proposed budget for the board at 

the next meeting.  We want adoption by August so we can put it on the roll to the St. Johns 

County tax collector.  Stacie has been working with Maggie Philips to go over the budget. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated this budget is going to have to take into consideration the opening 

of the facility next summer, for a few months. 

 Mr. Oliver stated we had a conference call last week and we will a series of those to work 

together to put that together.   

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Requests  

 There not being any, the next item followed. 

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 Ms. Behrmann stated since the Dicky Smith bid came in at $9.6 million I would like to 

see us reconsider the airnasium because we pulled that as one of the things that might put us over 

the budget and since that was a neat thing to do, my opinion is that we should reconsider it.  Also 

we still have not addressed and we can now because of the money, improvements to the current 

facility pool and that really should be addressed. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated that could not get addressed until we had a firm contract number. 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

31 

 Ms. Behrmann stated now we have that then perhaps that can be thrown back out which 

would involve Basham also.  We can’t let it slip by while the opportunity is here. 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked do you still have some of the things we talked about in the ad hoc 

committee that we were discussing as to improvements to the pool facility?  I know one of the 

things we talked about was adding a slide feature. 

 Ms. Behrmann stated we talked about putting in a spray park for the little ones back 

where the little wading pool is.  One of the problems that Basham had brought up was this pool 

did not have the right amount of bathrooms. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated if we add an additional facility such as a spray park or whatever 

then we would be out of whack.   

 Ms. Behrmann stated we would have to do more bathrooms or something so that was 

something to take into consideration.  We talked about the cost of heating or lighting it. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the swim team before you moved here did look into that and to do 

either of those would entail pulling up the entire pool deck because of the way the lighting works 

inside the pool and the heating issue.  In order to do something like an aeration you would have 

to do the outside aeration lines but that wouldn’t necessarily heat it, it would just help in the 

summer to cool it.  You would still have the plumbing issues.   

 Ms. Behrmann stated it was just something to not let go by the wayside.   

 Mr. Pincket stated that raises the question I think the answer is yes but the question is can 

we use money from this for that? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded yes and that is one of the reasons we structured it the way we 

did so we would be able to have those excess funds, as long as they are recreational 

improvements. 

 Mr. Haber stated essentially if there are excess funds they need to be used for proper 

purpose, I think is the defined term in the indenture, but I think everything you are contemplating 

is a proper purpose.  It simply means along the same lines that is going to benefit the community 

as a whole.   

 Ms. Behrmann asked could that money be used to fix the old playground? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded yes it could.   

 Ms. Behrmann stated I have two bummer things.  On the website we talked about how a 

parent might see something about a lifeguard but the reverse of that is a parent of an employee 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

32 

who may not be happy with a decision the board makes about inappropriate pictures on a website 

is the other side of the coin.  You have both sides so tread very lightly.   

 The other thing is in the handbook you had said something about the line that we ask 

them to commit and we can’t ask them to commit.  What was that line? 

 Ms. Beaugrand asked are you talking about working for only us? 

 Ms. Behrmann responded yes. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we took that out.   

 Ms. Minnis stated I was at the park this weekend and the eagles have fledged and I was 

talking to Lucy Seeds and she said the primary eagle zone came to the back edge of the pond.   

 Ms. Beaugrand stated we are still in the secondary zone. 

 Ms. Minnis stated that is the question, the secondary zone extends over here? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded it does. 

 Ms. Minnis asked and it does have the same rules because she didn’t think it did. 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded it has the May/October. 

 Ms. Spears stated I think the primary zone you can’t do anything in.  The secondary zone 

you can do it while the eagles are not here. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated if you look at the master plan you can see where the circle is for 

that primary zone where there is no single family home in that primary zone.   

 Ms. Minnis stated somebody is building a pool over in Creekside on the backside of it. 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated they are in the secondary zone.  We will look at that afterwards, I 

will show you.  That is one thing they are going to have to clarify with the county anyway as 

they do their construction scheduling over here.  We have an issue with the scheduling because 

you don’t want to tear this up in June and July but they have to finish it by the end of September. 

 Ms. Minnis asked does that now go to the park structure?  Would rebuilding the park 

structure fall within that zone? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded yes.   

 Ms. Minnis stated I guess we just want clarification of the zone and what can be done. 

 Mr. Maggiore stated I can check on that for you. 

 Ms. Minnis asked is it in writing? 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

33 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded yes, it is in writing.  One of the contractors had the specific 

dates in their proposal.  They had researched and scheduled the work here and there around those 

dates.  They didn’t think about our issue with tearing up the parking lot in June. 

 Mr. Maggiore stated our plans actually show the zones and then it talks about the dates.  

There are certain dates you can’t work unless the eagles are gone.   

 Ms. Behrmann asked earlier when you were talking about the RFP what about the interior 

and furniture, does all of that have to be done? 

 Ms. Beaugrand responded no.   

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 

 A. Financial Statements – February 28, 2007 

 

 B. Treasury Report – February 28, 2007 

 

 C. Special Assessment Report 

 

 D. Check Register Summary 

 1. General Fund – 3/1/07 – 3/30/07 

  Ms. Beaugrand stated the next item on the agenda would be financial reports.  

Behind Tab D 1 you have the general fund check numbers 1381 through 1399. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Pincket seconded by Ms. Minnis with all in 
favor the general fund check register was approved. 

 

 2. Recreation Fund – 3/1/07 – 3/30/07 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated behind Tab 2 is the check register for the recreation fund, check 

numbers 2004 through 2069. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Pincket seconded by Mr. Abbatiello with all 
in favor the recreation fund check register was approved.  

 



April 10, 2007 Julington Creek Plantation CDD 

34 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – May 8, 2007 at 
6:00 p.m. @ Community Development 
District Administrative Offices 

 Ms. Beaugrand stated the next meeting is May 8, 2007 ere at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Minnis seconded by Mr. Pincket with all in 
favor the meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.  

 
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 


